AMENDED

TRUSTEES OF THE CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

California State University Office of the Chancellor Glenn S. Dumke Auditorium* 401 Golden Shore Long Beach, CA 90802

March 24, 2020

Presiding: Adam Day, Chair

1:00 p.m. Board of Trustees

Virtually via Teleconference

Call to Order

Roll Call

Chair's Report

Chancellor's Report

Report of the Academic Senate CSU: Chair—Catherine Nelson

Report of the California State Student Association: President—Michael Wiafe

Report of the California State University Alumni Council: President—Michelle Power

Consent

Action

1. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of January 29, 2020

Action

2. Approval of Committee Resolutions as follows:

Joint Committees on Finance and Campus Planning, Buildings and Grounds

2. San Diego State University Multi-Use Stadium at Mission Valley -Approval to Amend the Capital Outlay Program; Approval of Schematic Plans; Approval to Issue Trustees of the California State University, Systemwide Revenue Bonds and Related Debt Instruments

Committee on Institutional Advancement

- 2. Naming of the Shakarian Family Student Success Center California State University, Long Beach
- 3. Recognition of Dolores Huerta

*PLEASE NOTE: Due to the Governor's proclamation of a State of Emergency resulting from the threat of COVID-19, and pursuant to the Governor's Executive Order N-25-20 issued on March 12, 2020, all members of the Board of Trustees may participate in this meeting remotely, either by telephonic or video conference means. Out of consideration for the health, safety and well-being of the members of the public and the Chancellor's Office staff, the Dumke Auditorium will not be open to the public during the meeting, and no Trustees or staff will be present in the Auditorium. Members of the public may offer public comment pursuant to the revised published protocol for "Addressing the Board of Trustees" as noted in this agenda.

^{**}The Board of Trustees is a public body, and members of the public have a right to attend and participate in its meetings. This schedule of meetings is established as a best approximation of how long each scheduled meeting will take to complete its business. Each meeting will be taken in sequence, except in unusual circumstances. Depending on the length of the discussions, which are not possible to predict with precision in advance, the scheduled meeting times indicated may vary widely. For two-day meetings, items scheduled for one day may be heard either the day before or the day after depending upon the time spent on each matter. The public is advised to take this uncertainty into account in planning to attend any meeting listed on this schedule.

Committee on Campus Planning, Buildings and Grounds

2. California State University, Sacramento Proposed Off-Campus Center in Placer County

Committee on Educational Policy

- 2. Academic Planning
- 4. Amendments to Title 5 Regarding Occupational Therapy Doctorate Degree Programs

Committee on Organization and Rules

2. Approval of the California State University Board of Trustees Meeting Dates for 2021

Committee of the Whole

2. Appointment of Five Members to the Committee on Committees for 2020-2021

Committee on University and Faculty Personnel

- 2. CSU Salary Schedule
- 3. Compensation for Executives

^{*}PLEASE NOTE: Due to the Governor's proclamation of a State of Emergency resulting from the threat of COVID-19, and pursuant to the Governor's Executive Order N-25-20 issued on March 12, 2020, all members of the Board of Trustees may participate in this meeting remotely, either by telephonic or video conference means. Out of consideration for the health, safety and well-being of the members of the public and the Chancellor's Office staff, the Dumke Auditorium will not be open to the public during the meeting, and no Trustees or staff will be present in the Auditorium. Members of the public may offer public comment pursuant to the revised published protocol for "Addressing the Board of Trustees" as noted in this agenda.

^{**}The Board of Trustees is a public body, and members of the public have a right to attend and participate in its meetings. This schedule of meetings is established as a best approximation of how long each scheduled meeting will take to complete its business. Each meeting will be taken in sequence, except in unusual circumstances. Depending on the length of the discussions, which are not possible to predict with precision in advance, the scheduled meeting times indicated may vary widely. For two-day meetings, items scheduled for one day may be heard either the day before or the day after depending upon the time spent on each matter. The public is advised to take this uncertainty into account in planning to attend any meeting listed on this schedule.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Trustees of the California State University
Office of the Chancellor
Glenn S. Dumke Auditorium
401 Golden Shore
Long Beach, California

January 29, 2020

Trustees Present

Adam Day, Chair Lillian Kimbell, Vice Chair Silas H. Abrego Larry L. Adamson Jane W. Carney

Rebecca D. Eisen

Douglas Faigin

Debra S. Farar

Jean Picker Firstenberg

Wenda Fong

Juan F. Garcia

Maryana Khames

Jeffrey R. Krinsk

Jack McGrory

Hugo Morales

Romey Sabalius

Lateefah Simon

Christopher Steinhauser

Peter J. Taylor

Timothy P. White, Chancellor

Lieutenant Governor Kounalakis

Superintendent Tony K. Thurmond

Chair Day called the meeting of the Board of Trustees to order.

Public Comment

The board heard from the following individuals during the public comment period:

Nathan Carbajal, Student, CSU Long Beach (SQE); Kalani Robinson, Student, CSU Los Angeles (SQE); Michelle Cerecerez, Parent of CSU Northridge student (CFA); Tessy Reese, Chair Bargaining Unit 2 (CSUEU); Rocky Sanchez, VP for Representation (CSUEU); Martin Brenner,

BoT Agenda Item 1 March 22-24, 2020

Vice Chair Bargaining Unit 9 (CSUEU); Tony Spraggins, Chair Bargaining Unit 7 (CSUEU); Neil Jacklin, President (CSUEU); Austin Gent, President & Founder, Promise Posterity; Drew Scott, Teamsters Local 2010; Cal Mason, Teamsters Local 2010.

Chair's Report

Chair Day's complete report can be viewed online at the following link: https://www2.calstate.edu/csu-system/board-of-trustees/reports-of-the-chair/Pages/january-2020.aspx

Chancellor's Report

Chancellor Timothy P. White presented the State of the CSU Address on Tuesday, January 28, 2020. https://www2.calstate.edu/csu-system/chancellor/the-chancellors-communications/Pages/state-of-the-csu-jan-2020.aspx

Report of the Academic Senate CSU

CSU Academic Senate Chair, Catherine Nelson's complete report can be viewed online at the following link:

https://www2.calstate.edu/csu-system/faculty-staff/academic-senate/Pages/ASCSU-Chairs-Report.aspx

Report from the California State Student Association

CSSA President Michael Wiafe's complete report can be viewed online at the following link: https://www.calstatestudents.org/public-documents/#president

Report of the California State University Alumni Council

The Alumni Council deferred their report to the next Board meeting.

Board of Trustees

The minutes of the meeting of November 20, 2019 were approved as submitted.

Prior to the approval of the consent agenda, Trustee Morales requested that Item 4, Admission Requirements: Quantitative Reasoning - from the Committee on Educational Policy - be removed from the consent agenda for separate discussion. Chair Day asked to move all the remaining consent agenda items for approval. There was a second. The Board of Trustees approved the following resolutions:

COMMITTEE ON INSTITUTIONAL ADVANCEMENT

Naming of the Grimm Family Center for Agricultural Business – California State University, Bakersfield (RIA 01-20-01)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that the Grimm Family Center for Agricultural Business be established at California State University, Bakersfield.

Annual Report on Donor Support for 2018-2019 (RIA 01-20-02)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that the Annual Report on Donor Support for 2018-2019 be adopted for submission to the California Joint Legislative Budget Committee and the California Department of Finance.

JOINT COMMITTEES ON FINANCE AND CAMPUS PLANNING, BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS

San Diego State University - Certification of the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Proposed Mission Valley Campus Master Plan; Approval of the Proposed Mission Valley Campus Master Plan; Authorize the Chancellor to Execute a Purchase and Sale Agreement for the Mission Valley Campus Real Property Acquisition Within the Terms and Parameters Set forth in this Action Item; Approval to Amend the Capital Outlay Program for the Proposed Real Property Acquisition and Site Development; and Approval to Issue Trustees of the California State University Systemwide Revenue Bonds and Related Debt Instruments for the Proposed Project (RFIN/CPBG 01-20-01)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that:

- 1. The Board of Trustees finds that the January 17, 2020 Final EIR has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act, and the Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act.
- 2. The Final EIR addresses the proposed Mission Valley Campus Master Plan, the proposed Real Property and Site Development Project, other near-term projects, and all discretionary actions related to the proposed Master Plan as identified in the Final EIR.

- 3. The Board of Trustees hereby certifies the January 17, 2020 Final EIR for the San Diego State University Mission Valley Campus Master Plan.
- 4. Prior to the certification of the Final EIR, the Board of Trustees reviewed and considered the Final EIR and found it to reflect the independent judgment of the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees hereby certifies the Final EIR as complete and adequate and finds that it addresses all potentially significant environmental impacts of the proposed Master Plan, and fully complies with the requirements of CEQA. For purposes of CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines, the administrative record includes the following:
 - a. The 2019 Draft EIR for the San Diego State University Mission Valley Campus Master Plan;
 - b. The Final EIR, including comments received on the Draft EIR, responses to comments, and revisions to the Draft EIR in response to comments received;
 - c. The CEQA Findings of Fact, Statement of Overriding Considerations, and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, including the mitigation measures identified therein for Agenda Item 2 of the January 28-29, 2020 meeting of Joint Committees on Finance and Campus Planning, Buildings and Grounds, which identifies the specific impacts of the proposed Mission Valley Campus Master Plan and related mitigation measures.
 - d. The proceedings before the Board of Trustees relating to the subject Mission Valley Campus Master Plan, including testimony and documentary evidence introduced at such proceedings; and
 - e. All attachments, documents incorporated, and references made in the documents as specified in items (a) through (d) above.
- 5. This resolution is adopted pursuant to the requirements of Section 21081 of the California Public Resources Code and Section 15091 of the CEQA Guidelines which require the Board of Trustees to make findings prior to the approval of the project.
- 6. The Board of Trustees hereby adopts the CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations stating that the proposed Master Plan, including the Real Property Acquisition and Site Development Project, and other near-term projects' benefit to the California State University outweigh the remaining significant and unavoidable air quality, cultural resources, noise, population and housing, public services, and transportation impacts.
- 7. The Board of Trustees hereby adopts the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, including the mitigation measures identified therein for Agenda Item 2 of the January 28-29, 2020 meeting of Joint Committees on Finance and Campus Planning, Buildings and Grounds, which identifies the specific impacts of the proposed Mission Valley Campus Master Plan and related mitigation measures, which are hereby incorporated by reference. The

- mitigation measures identified in the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program shall be monitored and reported in accordance with the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program which meets the requirements of CEQA.
- 8. The Board of Trustees hereby adopts the Statement of Overriding Considerations stating that the proposed Master Plan, including the Real Property Acquisition and Site Development Project, and other near-term projects' benefit to the California State University outweigh the remaining significant and unavoidable air quality, cultural resources, noise, population and housing, public services, and transportation impacts.
- 9. The Final EIR has identified potentially significant impacts that may result from implementation of the proposed Mission Valley Campus Master Plan, Real Property Acquisition and Site Development Project and other near-term projects. However, the Board of Trustees, by adopting the Findings of Fact, finds that the inclusion of certain mitigation measures as a part of the Master Plan approval will reduce most, but not all, of these effects to less than significant levels. Those impacts which are not reduced to less than significant levels are identified as significant and unavoidable and are overridden due to specific Master Plan benefits to the CSU identified in the Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations.
- 10. The Board of Trustees approves the use of approximately \$40 million for its share of future off-site mitigation for the City of San Diego and the California Department of Transportation. The funds are expected to be provided from future state capital or operation budget funding, the CSU, self-support entities, private developers, the City, and/or other entities.
- 11. The proposed Master Plan will benefit the California State University.
- 12. The Board of Trustees hereby acknowledges the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Mission Valley Campus Master Plan dated January 17, 2020 as complete and in compliance with CEQA.
- 13. The San Diego State University Mission Valley Campus Master Plan is approved.
- 14. The Chancellor or his designee is requested under Delegation of Authority granted by the Board of Trustees to file the Notice of Determination for the Final EIR for the San Diego State University Mission Valley Campus Master Plan, and the Real Property Acquisition and Site Development Project.
- 15. The 2019-2020 Capital Outlay Program is amended to include \$350 million for acquisition, preliminary plans, working drawings, and construction for the Mission Valley Real Property Acquisition and Site Development project.
- 16. The Trustees hereby authorize the Chancellor to execute the final Purchase and Sale Agreement ("PSA") for the purchase and acquisition of the Mission Valley site from the City of San Diego subject to the following conditions:
- 17. If the Chancellor and the Chair of the Board of Trustees agree that the terms and conditions of the PSA do not materially deviate from the terms of the

BoT Agenda Item 1 March 22-24, 2020

- October 28, 2019 Offer to Purchase (Attachment B), the Chancellor shall execute the PSA.
- 18. If the Chancellor or the Chair believe that there are material differences between the PSA and Attachment B, the Chancellor shall not execute the PSA and shall instead forward it to the Board of Trustees for their review and approval at a future meeting.
- 19. Financing for the Mission Valley Real Property Acquisition and Site Development Project as described in this Agenda Item 2 of the Joint Committees on Finance and Campus Planning, Buildings and Grounds at the January 28-29, 2020 meeting of the CSU Board of Trustees is approved. Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, as bond counsel, is preparing resolutions to be presented at this meeting that authorize interim and permanent financing for the Project described in this Agenda Item 2 and provide for the following:
 - a. Authorize the sale and issuance of the Trustees of the California State University Systemwide Revenue Bonds, and/or the sale and issuance of related Systemwide Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes, and/or the issuance of related debt instruments, including shorter term debt, variable rate debt, floating rate loans placed directly with banks, or fixed rate loans placed directly with banks, in an aggregate amount not-to-exceed \$255,977,000 and certain actions relating thereto.
 - b. Authorize the sale and issuance of the Trustees of the California State University Systemwide Revenue Bonds, and/or the sale and issuance of related Systemwide Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes, and/or the issuance of related debt instruments, including shorter term debt, variable rate debt, floating rate loans placed directly with banks, or fixed rate loans placed directly with banks, in an aggregate amount not-to-exceed \$61,023,000 and certain actions relating thereto, subject to the California Department of Finance approval of the project.
 - c. Authorize the chancellor; the executive vice chancellor and chief financial officer; the assistant vice chancellor, Financial Services; and the assistant vice chancellor, Financing, Treasury, and Risk Management; and their designees to take any and all necessary actions to execute documents for the sale and issuance of the revenue bonds, bond anticipation notes, or related debt instruments.

COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

2020-2021 Lottery Budget and Report (RFIN 01-20-01)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that the 2020-2021 lottery budget totaling \$58.9 million be approved for implementation by the chancellor, with the authorization to make transfers between components of the lottery budget and to adjust expenditures in accordance with receipt of lottery funds; and be it further

RESOLVED, that the chancellor is hereby granted authority to adjust the 2020-2021 lottery budget approved by the Board of Trustees to the extent that receipts are greater or less than budgeted revenue to respond to opportunities or exigencies; and be it further

RESOLVED, that a report of the 2020-2021 lottery budget receipts and expenditures be made to the Board of Trustees.

COMMITTEE ON UNIVERSITY AND FACULTY PERSONNEL

Update to Policies and Procedures for Review of Presidents (RUFP 01-20-01)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that the "Policies and Procedures for Review of Presidents" be amended as cited in Item 2 of the Committee on University and Faculty Personnel at the January 28-29, 2020 meeting of the Board of Trustees.

Prior to the approval of the consent agenda, Trustee Morales requested that Item 4, Admission Requirements: Quantitative Reasoning - from the Committee on Educational Policy - be removed from the consent agenda for separate discussion.

Trustee Morales expressed his support for quantitative reasoning however noting his opposition to the approach and process approved in committee. Chair Day moved to approve the committee resolution, there was a second. Chair Day called for the vote. The resolution passed; there was one opposed (Trustee Morales) and one abstention (Trustee Krinsk). The following resolution was approved:

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATIONAL POLICY

Admission Requirements: Quantitative Reasoning (REP 01-20-01)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that:

- 1. The Board of Trustees seeks to have all incoming first year students complete, in addition to the current 'a-g' high school course requirements, a fourth year quantitative reasoning course, selecting from a wide range of courses as described in this agenda item, and will consider approving such a requirement and Title 5 change by spring 2022 to be effective fall 2027.
- 2. The Chancellor shall submit to the Board a progress report in March 2021 and a final report by January 2022 that includes:
 - a. a third-party independent analysis of the planned implementation and potential impact of the proposed requirement on high school students' application to the CSU,
 - b. the progress on doubling the number of STEM qualified teachers annually prepared by the CSU,
 - c. clarity of the charge, role and composition of a steering committee that reports to the EVC of Academic and Student Affairs,
 - d. clarity on exemptions for students whose public schools do not provide sufficient courses, and
 - e. the progress on increasing outreach and awareness of the proposed requirement with schools, counselors, and families.